
Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
AGENDA 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, January 24, 2012                                                                        City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                  16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 
 

**Note** A Special Meeting is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m.  
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Announcement of Volunteer of the Year and Commissioner of the Year (Council) 
 
RECEPTION FOR VOLUNTEER AND COMMISSIONER OF THE YEAR 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving 
comment from the public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  If additional time is needed a person may request that the Council place an item on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes of January 9, 2012 Special Joint Meeting with Kent School District Board (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers. (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Interlocal Agreement with South End Area Regional Coalition for Housing (SEARCH) 

(Throm) 
C-4. Agreement with Reporter Newspapers (Slate)  
C-5. Ratify Easement Agreement with Covington Legacy, LLC (Hart/Lyons) 
C-6. Easement to Covington Commercial LLC for Installation of Water Main (Hart/Lyons) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad:  December canceled; January 12 Meeting. 
• Arts Chair Sandi Bisordi:  November 10, December 8, and January 12 Meetings. 
• Planning Chair Daniel Key:  Dec. 1 & Jan. 5 canceled; Dec. 15 and Jan. 19 Meetings. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  December 1 Meeting. 

 
• Future Meetings:  Parks & Recreation Commission Next Meeting Scheduled for       

March 21, 2012 (December & January meetings canceled) 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
1. Appointments to Parks and Recreation Commission (Council) 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


2. Code Amendments to Clarify Exemptions for School and Traffic Impact Fees 
(Lyons/Vondran) 

3. Code Amendments to Permit Farmers Markets, Cross Reference Sign Standards and Create 
Parking Island Standards in Downtown Zones (Lyons/Hart)  

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 - Future Agenda Topics  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

• Review the Performance of a Public Employee (RCW 42.30.110(1)(g)) 
  
ADJOURN    
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 24 hours 
in advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 
(253) 638-1110.  



 

Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  January 24, 2012   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  JANUARY 9, 2012 CITY COUNCIL JOINT 

MEETING WITH KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MINUTES.   

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes  
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember ______________ 
seconds, to approve the January 9, 2012 City Council Joint Meeting with 
Kent School District Board of Directors Minutes.  
 
 
 

1 of 70



Unapproved Draft – January 9, 2012 Joint Meeting with Kent School District Board of Directors 
Submitted for Approval:  January 24, 2012 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
City Council Joint Meeting with Kent School District Board of Directors 

Tuesday, January 9, 2012 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Joint Meeting with the Kent School District Board of Directors was called to order in the 
City Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
January 9, 2012, at 6:04 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, David Lucavish (arrived @ 6:12 p.m.), Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, 
and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Mark Lanza 
 
KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS PRESENT: 
Debbie Straus, Tim Clark, Karen DeBruler, and Russ Hanscom. 
 
KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS ABSENT: 
Bill Boyce. 
 
COVINGTON STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Scott Thomas, 
Parks & Recreation Director; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT STAFF PRESENT: 
Dr. Edward Lee Vargas, Superintendent; Dr. Brent Jones, Chief Talent Officer; Dr. Richard Stedry, 
Chief Business Officer; Dr. Linda Del Giudice, Chief Accountability Officer; Dr. Eric Hong, School 
Improvement Officer; Jeanette Ristau, School Improvement Officer; Thuan Nguyen, Chief Information 
and Automated Operations Officer; and Jeff Sweeney, School Improvement Officer 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS: 
Mayor Margaret Harto asked the attendees to introduce themselves. 
 
Joshua Max, Boy Scout Troop 594, led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
1.  Kent School District Strategic Plan. 
 
President Straus introduced this item, and then Dr. Vargas gave the presentation. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Dr. Vargas provided responses. 
 
 a. School Closure Process. 
 

2 of 70



Unapproved Draft – January 9, 2012 Joint Meeting with Kent School District Board of Directors 
Submitted for Approval:  January 24, 2012 
 

 2 

Dr. Stedry gave the presentation on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Dr. Stedry provided responses. 
 
2.  City of Covington Town Center Plan. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the presentation on this item. 
 
Questions were asked, and Mr. Hart provided responses. 
 
3.  City’s Request for Right-of-First-Refusal to Purchase Covington Elementary School. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson gave the presentation on this item. 
 
Kent School District indicated they would agree to form a proposal at an upcoming meeting to 
accept the City’s request for right-of-first-refusal to purchase Covington Elementary School and 
grant that request. 
 
Board Member Tim Clark proposed an interlocal agreement between the Kent School District 
and the City of Covington to address local disasters. 
 
Councilmember Snoey mentioned the “No Child Left Behind Act” and requested an update on 
this issue.  Dr. Vargas provided a response on the improvements that have been made. 
 
Mayor Harto requested an update on the land that the Kent School District owns; and Dr. Stedry 
provided an inventory of current school district owned property. 
 
Mayor Harto inquired as to how the facility use agreement was working with Covington 
Community Sports.  Dr. Stedry reported that this agreement was under the direction of the 
athletic department; however, to the best of his knowledge there had not been any negative 
reports. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Deputy City Clerk     City Clerk 

3 of 70



 

Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  January 24, 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #27000-27146, in the Amount of $352,192.98, Dated January 
10, 2012; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000329468-1000329478 and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1000329481-1000329483 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$136,385.81, Dated January 20, 2012. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment:  Vouchers #27000-27146, in the Amount 
of $352,192.98, Dated January 10, 2012; Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1000329468-1000329478 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000329481-
1000329483 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$136,385.81, Dated January 20, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4 of 70



5 of 70



6 of 70



7 of 70



8 of 70



9 of 70



10 of 70



11 of 70



12 of 70



13 of 70



14 of 70



15 of 70



16 of 70



17 of 70



18 of 70



19 of 70



20 of 70



21 of 70



 

 

Consent Agenda Item C-3  
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date: January 24, 2012 
  
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT (ILA) FOR SOUTH END AREA REGIONAL COALITION FOR 
HOUSING (SEARCH).  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:   Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1.  SEARCH Interlocal Agreement (ILA) 
  
PREPARED BY:  Victoria Throm, Personnel & Human Services Analyst 
 
EXPLANATION:  
In August of 2011, the City Council considered participation in an Interlocal Agreement for 
SEARCH proposed by the City of Auburn.  Council reached consensus to direct the City Manager 
to negotiate modifications to the ILA to address the city attorney’s concerns and bring it back to 
Council for formal approval.   
 
Covington City Attorney Sara Springer addressed her concerns with Dan Heid, Auburn City 
Attorney.  She received more information regarding her questions to the ILA and now approves 
proceeding with the execution of the ILA.  Sara’s comments will be kept on file and included in any 
amendments that may be made to the ILA in the future.   
 
ALTERNATIVES:   

1.  Not to authorize the City Manager to enter into the SEARCH Interlocal Agreement. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION: ____Ordinance    ____Resolutions       X    Motion     ______Other 
 
            Councilmember _________ moves, and Councilmember __________ seconds 

to authorize the City Manager to enter into an Interlocal Agreement for 
South End Area Regional Coalition for Housing (SEARCH).            

 
REVIEWED BY:   City Manager; Personnel Manager 

22 of 70



ATTACHMENT 1

23 of 70



24 of 70



25 of 70



26 of 70



27 of 70



28 of 70



29 of 70



Consent Agenda Item C-4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  January 24, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:  EXECUTE AGREEMENT WITH REPORTER NEWSPAPERS FOR MONTHLY 

UPDATE, CITY REPORT CARD AND ANNUAL RESIDENTS’ GUIDE 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Covington Reporter Contract for Services 
 
PREPARED BY:  Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator 
 
EXPLANATION: 
In 2011, as in past years, the City contracted services with the Covington Reporter to publish the 
Monthly Update and Annual Residents’ Guide. The Reporter has provided excellent 
communication, design and content proofing, reasonable rates and flexibility in deadlines. 
 
The Covington Reporter has, again, decided not to increase their fees in 2012 due to our long- 
standing relationship. Their updated contract is attached for review.  
 
Due to no rate increase and an excellent relationship with the Reporters’ staff, staff recommends 
contracting with the Reporter again in 2012 for publishing services. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Renegotiate fees with the Reporter or choose to create these publications in-house. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
We have budgeted $36,100 in the Executive Office Budget for 2012. Actual costs will likely be 
less than the budgeted amount.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the city manager to execute an agreement with the 
Reporter for annual advertising services. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney 

30 of 70



ATTACHMENT 1

31 of 70



Consent Agenda Item C-5 
Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: January 24, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  RATIFY THE CITY MANANGER’S SIGNATURE TO EXECUTE AN 

EASEMENT AGREEMENT FOR A PRIVATE UTILITY EASEMENT LOCATED 
IN TRACTS I AND J AT THE COVINGTON ESPLANADE DEVELOPMENT 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. Easement Agreement 
 
PREPARED BY:  Salina Lyons, Senior Planner 
 Nelson Ogren, Development Review Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION:   
Covington Legacy LLC (aka Ashton Capital Corporation) requested an easement from the city 
for a storm drainage overflow pipe from the development’s private storm water management 
system that crosses through Tract I and discharges into Tract J at the Covington Esplanade 
development (Covington Legacy, City File No. LU05-0055/2005).  Tract I and J were dedicated 
to the city on October 4, 2007, upon recording of the binding site plan.  This easement was 
overlooked and not shown on the final recorded document; therefore, a separate easement 
agreement was necessary.  This matter was expedited due to Covington Legacy’s need to record 
this easement by December 22, 2011; therefore, staff is now seeking the Council’s ratification of 
the City Manager’s execution of this easement agreement.   
 
ALTERNATIVES:  None. This is a legally recorded document. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No direct impact. The location of the overflow pipe was approved as part of 
the overall development proposal.  The easement request clarifies the location within Tract I. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance           Resolution      X     Motion             
Other 
 

Council member _______________ moves, Council member ______________ 
seconds, to ratify the City Manager’s signature to execute an easement 
agreement for a private utility easement located in Tract I and J at the 
Covington esplanade development. 
 

REVIEWED BY:   Community Development Director 
   Public Works Director 
   Finance Director 
   City Attorney 

City Manager 

32 of 70



ATTACHMENT 1

33 of 70



34 of 70



35 of 70



36 of 70



37 of 70



38 of 70



39 of 70



40 of 70



41 of 70



Consent Agenda Item C-6 
Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: January 24, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANANGER TO EXECUTE AN EASEMENT 

AGREEMENT TO LOCATE A WATER LINE TO SERVICE THE FIRESTONE 
DEVELOPMENT, CITY FILE NO. LU11-0008/2127, WITHIN A PORTION OF 
CITY OWNED PROPERTY (PARCEL NO 3780400130)  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. Easement Agreement 
 
PREPARED BY:  Salina Lyons, Senior Planner 
 Nelson Ogren, Development Review Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION:   
The developer, Covington Investments II, LLC, requires an easement for the purpose of 
constructing, installing and maintaining an underground waterline extension, across and through 
the City’s property, specifically drainage Tract A of June Estates, located at the southern end of 
the soon to be vacated 176th PL SE.   This waterline extension is a requirement of the Covington 
Water District for the Firestone commercial development, City File No. LU11-0008/2127. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  Do not authorize the City Manager to enter into an easement agreement. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No direct impact. The easement agreement outlines the responsibility of the 
property owner.    
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance           Resolution      X     Motion             
Other 
 

Council member _______________ moves, Council member ______________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to enter into an easement agreement 
to locate a water line to service the firestone development, City File No. 
LU11-0008/2127, within a portion of city owned property (Parcel No 
3780400130). 
 

REVIEWED BY:   Community Development Director 
   Public Works Director 
   Finance Director 
   City Attorney 

City Manager 

42 of 70



 

RETURN ADDRESS 
City of Covington 
16720 SE 271st Street,  
Suite 100 
Covington, WA  98042 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Grantor: City of Covington 
 
Grantee: Covington Investments II, LLC 
 
Assessor’s Property Tax Parcel/Account Numbers: 3780400130  
 
 
 
 
 

EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT made this _____ day of January 2012, by and between the City of 
Covington, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington with an address of 16720 SE 
271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, WA 98042 (“Grantor”), and Covington Investments II, LLC, 
a Washington limited liability company, with an address of 1905 Queen Anne Ave. N, Suite 250, 
Seattle, WA  98109, and its successors (“Grantee”), for a permanent, nonexclusive easement.  
 
 WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner of land at parcel no. 3780400130, legally described in 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated by this reference (“Grantor Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Grantee is the owner of land at parcel no. 2522059270, legally described in 
Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated by this reference (“Grantee Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Grantee requires an easement for the purpose of constructing, installing, and 
maintaining an underground water line across and through the Grantor Property at a location 
more specifically described below; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Grantor warrants that it has title to the Grantor Property and is authorized to 
grant and convey this easement. 
 
 NOW THERFORE, in consideration of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00), and other good and 
valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and in consideration of the 
performance by Grantee of the covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter set forth, Grantor 
hereby grants, conveys, and quitclaims to Grantee a nonexclusive easement over, across, under 

ATTACHMENT 1

43 of 70



 

and through the following described portion of the Grantor Property: 
 
 A strip of land 20.00 feet in width over, under, and across that portion of Tract A, Plat of 
 June Estates, recorded in Volume 110 of Plats, Pages 3 and 4, records of King County, 
 Washington, having 10.00 feet of such width lying on each side of the following 
 described centerline: 
 
 COMMENCING at the Southwest corner of said Tract A; 
 THENCE South 87°52'45" East, 47.09 feet along the South line of said Tract A to the 
 TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING of herein described centerline; 
 THENCE North 02°07'15" East, 10.00 feet; 
 THENCE South 87°52'45" East, 29.00 feet; 
 THENCE North 46°44'08" East, 36.25 feet to the Northeasterly line of said Tract A and 
 the terminus (the “Easement Area”).  
 
 A depiction of the Easement Area is attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and incorporated 
herein by reference.  
 
AND, Grantor and Grantee further covenant and agree as follows: 
 
1. Said easement is for the purpose of constructing, installing, maintaining, removing, repairing, 
replacing, and using an underground water line across and through the Easement Area for the 
benefit of the Grantee Property (the "Water Line"), together with the nonexclusive right of 
access over the remainder of the Grantor Property for the foregoing purposes. 
 
2.  All cost and expense of Water Line work undertaken in the Easement Area by or at the 
behest of Grantee (the “Work”) shall be paid and borne exclusively by Grantee.  Grantee shall 
keep Grantor’s lands free and clear from any and all liens of whatever nature arising out of any 
Work performed, materials furnished and/or obligations incurred by, on behalf of, or under the 
direction of, Grantee. 
 
3.  Upon completion of any Work in the Easement Area, Grantee shall promptly repair and 
restore all landscaping and surface improvements disturbed or removed by Grantee in the 
course of use of the Easement Area to the same or better condition as found immediately prior 
to the Work performed, all without cost or expense to Grantor. 
 
4.   Grantee’s final design for the Water Line shall be submitted to the Grantor for review prior 
to installation of the Water Line. Grantee shall be responsible for all cost associated with the 
installation thereof. 

 
5.  If in the use of the Easement Area Grantee damages other property of Grantor or causes 
damage to the Easement Area as a result of activity that is not permitted by this Agreement, 
Grantee shall repair, replace, and restore, at Grantee's sole expense, said damage. 
 
6.  All Grantee work shall be conducted in accordance with all applicable codes and 
requirements governing such work. Grantee agrees to construct the Water Line in accordance 
with Grantor’s Public Works Design and Construction Standards, and as approved by Grantor. 

44 of 70



 

 
 
 
7.  Grantor reserves the right to operate, construct, protect, replace, and maintain future and 
existing improvements on the Grantor Property as needed and to enjoy said land, subject to 
this Agreement.   
 
8.    Grantee may, at any time, permanently abandon said easement and, at its discretion, may 
remove or abandon in place the Water Line.  Upon such abandonment action, Grantee shall 
promptly execute and record a reconveyance and release of this Agreement, whereupon this 
Agreement with all rights and privileges mutually granted shall be fully canceled and 
terminated. 
 
9. Grantee shall indemnify and hold Grantor harmless from and against any and all loss, 
damage, or injury which may result from the use, construction, installation, replacement and 
maintenance of the easement; provided, however, that said loss, damage, or injury does not 
arise out of or result from the negligent actions or omissions of Grantor, its agents or 
employees. 

 
10.  The rights, conditions, covenants, and provisions contained in this Agreement shall inure to 
the benefit of and be binding on the parties hereto and their respective heirs, administrators, 
executors, successors and assigns and shall run with the title to the Grantor Property and the 
Grantee Property. 
 
11.    In case suit or action is commenced by either party, or their successors and/or assigns, to 
enforce any rights under this Agreement, or regarding an encroachment on either of the 
Easements, in addition to costs provided by statute, the substantially prevailing party shall be 
entitled to an award of attorneys’ fees in such sum as the court may adjudge just and 
reasonable. 
 
12.  Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a gift or dedication of any portion of the 
Easement Area to the general public or for the general public or for any public uses whatsoever 
other than those specifically described herein, it being the intention of the parties that this 
easement shall be strictly limited to and for the purpose herein expressed. 
 
13.   Each of the undersigned hereby represents and warrants that it is authorized to execute 
this Agreement on behalf of the respective parties to this Agreement and that this Agreement, 
when executed by said parties, shall become valid and binding obligations enforceable in 
accordance with its terms. 
 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
 
  

45 of 70



 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this conveyance and agreement this 
____ day of January, 2012. 

GRANTOR: CITY OF COVINGTON 
 
____________________________________ 
By: Derek M. Matheson  
Its: City Manager   
 

 

GRANTEE: COVINGTON INVESTMENTS II, LLC 
 

 
       

By: ___________________________ 

Its: ___________________________ 
  

46 of 70



 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT – CITY MANAGER 
 
 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON  )  
                                )ss. 
COUNTY OF KING            ) 
 
On this             day of                 , 201__, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in 
and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared Derek M. 
Matheson to me known to be the City Manager of the City of Covington, the corporation that 
executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged the said instrument to be the free and 
voluntary act and deed of said corporation, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and 
on oath stated that Derek M. Matheson is authorized to execute the said instrument and that 
the seal affixed is the corporate seal of said corporation. 
 
Witness my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above written. 
 
 

        
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of 
Washington.                       
 
Residing at: _____________________  
 
My Comm. Exp.: ____________________  

  
  

47 of 70



 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT - GRANTEE 
 
 
STATE OF Washington)  
                              )ss. 
COUNTY OF  King ) 
 
On this             day of                   , 201__, before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington duly commissioned and sworn, personally 
appeared _____________________to me known to be the _____________________ of 
_________________________________________________, the company that executed the 
foregoing instrument, and acknowledged the said instrument to be the free and voluntary act 
and deed of said company, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated 
that 
____________________________ is authorized to execute the said instrument on behalf of 
said company. 
 
Witness my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above written. 
 
 
              
 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of 
Washington 
 
Residing at: _____________________  
 
My Comm. Exp.: ____________________ 

48 of 70



 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Legal Description of Grantor Property 
 

 
Tract A, Plat of June Estates, recorded in Volume 110 of Plats, Pages 3 and 4, records of King 
County, Washington. 
 

49 of 70



 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

Legal Description of Grantee Property 
 

LOT 2, KING COUNTY SHORT PLAT NUMBER L94S0002, RECORDED UNDER 
RECORDING NUMBER 9712119008 EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE 
SOUTHEASTERLY 3 FEET AS CONVEYED TO THE CITY OF COVINGTON BY DEED 
RECORDED JUNE 1, 2005 UNDER RECORDING NUMBER 20050601001255. 
 
TOGETHER WITH THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCEL: 
 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1, IN THE 
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 25, TOWNSHIP 22 NORTH, RANGE 5 EAST 
OF THE WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN; 
THENCE SOUTH 87’ 39’ 27” EAST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 1, A 
DISTANCE OF 134.44 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE CONINUING SOUTH 87’ 39’ 27” EAST, ALONG THE NORTH OF SAID 
LOT 1, A DISTANCE OF 115.06 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 
LOT 1; 
THENCE SOUTH 02’ 20’ 33” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 56.10 FEET TO AN ANGLE 
POINT IN THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 1; 
THENCE NORTH 87’ 39’ 27” WEST, ALONG A BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID LOT 1, A 
DISTANCE OF 115.04 FEET TO AN ANGLE POINT IN THE EASTERLY LINE OF 
SAID LOT 1; 
THENCE NORTH 02’ 19’ 47” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 56.10 FEET TO THE TRUE 
POINT OF BEGINNING AND THE TERMINUS OF THIS DESCRIPTION. 

SITUATE IN THE CITY OF COVINGTON, COUNTY OF KING, STATE OF 
WASHINGTON. 

50 of 70



 

EXHIBIT “C” 
 

Depiction of Easement Area 
 

 

51 of 70



Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  January 24, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:   APPOINTMENTS TO OPENINGS ON THE PARKS & RECREATION 

COMMISSION  (DEFERRED FROM JANUARY 10, 2012 MEETING) 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director 
         
ATTACHMENTS:  See Interview Schedule and Applications 

 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Deputy City Clerk  
 
EXPLANATION:     
At the January 10, 2012 City Council meeting, Councilmembers voted to defer the appointments 
to the Parks & Recreation Commission to the January 24, 2012 Council meeting to allow the two 
councilmembers unable to attend the interview to listen to the interview recordings and to 
participate in the selection process.  The interview recording was sent to all councilmembers for 
review. 
 
The City received seven applications for consideration of three openings on the Parks & 
Recreation Commission.  One of the three openings may be filled by an applicant living outside 
the city limits but within the three-mile radius.  The Council is scheduled to interview six 
applicants on January 10, 2012.  (The seventh applicant is out of town.)  
 
Name of Applicant      Resides  
Laura Morrissey    All Applicants Reside Inside City Limits 
Lance Leonard     
Elizabeth (Liz) Fast (reapplying to Position No. 4)   
George Pearson     
William Pand (youth) (reapplying to Position No. 1)    
David Aldous (reapplying to Position No. 3)     
David Rudisill                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
     
The Parks and Recreation Commission shall consist of seven members appointed by the City 
Council, two of which may be youth members who must be between the ages of 14 and 18 years 
at the start of their terms. Up to two of the members may reside outside the city, but those 
outside must reside within a three-mile radius of the city limits. The remaining five members 
must reside or work within the city limits. 
 
Each position shall have a term of office for three years; provided, however, any member 
designated as a youth member shall serve only for one year. If a youth member is appointed, the 
Council shall fill the position for the remaining years, if any, at the end of the youth term. Terms 
shall commence on February 1st and expire on January 31st of the respective years. When a 
vacancy occurs, the replacement shall be for the remainder of the unexpired term. 
 

52 of 70



 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not appoint at this time and direct staff to continue to advertise for additional applicants to be 
considered for the open positions. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motions            Other  

 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint ______________ to fill Position No. 1 on the Parks & 
Recreation Commission with a term expiring January 31, 2014 if an adult or 
a term expiring January 31, 2013 if a youth. 
 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint ______________ to fill Position No. 3 on the Parks & 
Recreation Commission with a term expiring January 31, 2015. 
 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint ______________ to fill Position No. 4 on the Parks & 
Recreation Commission with a term expiring January 31, 2015. 
 

REVIEWED BY: City Manager, Parks & Recreation Director, City Clerk  

53 of 70



Agenda Item 2 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date: January 24, 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE AMENDING THE IMPACT FEE EXEMPTION REQUIREMENTS 

AND PROCESS TO CMC CHAPTER 12.105 TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEES 
AND CMC CHAPTER 18.120 SCHOOL IMPACT FEES. 

  
RECOMMENDED BY:   Richard Hart, Community Development Director 

Salina Lyons, Senior Planner  
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed Ordinance Adopting amendments to CMC Chapter 12.105 and Chapter 
18.120  
 

PREPARED BY:  Salina Lyons, Senior Planner 
 
EXPLANATION:   
 

A. Transportation Impact Fee Exemption Overview (CMC 12.105) 
The city updated its transportation impact fee ordinance in 2010 and adopted the low and 
moderate housing exemption as outlined in the RCWs.  Pursuant to the RCWs, cities have an 
option to exempt low and moderate income housing from paying impact fees; however, the 
jurisdiction is required to make up the fees from “public funds other than impact fee accounts.”  
This means a dollar-for-dollar replacement into the capital fund from the general fund.   
 
For example, a 200 unit (100 1-2 bedroom units and 100 3+ bedroom units) development would 
be required to pay approximately $615,500.00 dollars in transportation impact fees. If the city 
waives the transportation impact fees for that development, then those funds would be required 
to come from the general fund to pay back the capital fund. Given the current economy and local 
budgets, it is essentially cost prohibitive for cities to exempt any development from paying 
impact fees.   
 
The Planning Commission recommends that low/moderate income housing development 
continue to be eligible for an exemption from paying transportation impact fees; however, 
qualifying for such an exemption would not be automatic. Rather, any requests for the 
exemptions or reductions to transportation impact fees would go before the Council for approval. 
The Council would then evaluate the exemption against the city’s budget and determine if funds 
are available and can be allocated to the particular project to cover the waived impact fees.  This 
will allow the City Council to review the request and discuss the level of investment and 
economic impact of the particular exemption. 
 

B. School Impact Fee Exemption Overview (CMC 18.120) 
Under current legislation, school districts cannot collect impact fees; therefore they rely on cities 
to collect fees on their behalf.  As currently adopted in the Covington Municipal Code, low or 

54 of 70



moderate housing developments may be exempt from paying school impact fees.  The 
Community Development Director is responsible for reviewing an exemption request and 
making a determination if it should be granted.   
 
The city’s responsibilities for the collection of school impact fees on the school district’s behalf, 
and authority to make decisions on exceptions from the school impact fees, creates a unique 
inter-jurisdictional relationship that requires an open dialogue. Accordingly, the Planning 
Commission recommends amending the CMC school impact fees chapter to include language to 
require the Community Development Director to notify the school district when a school impact 
fee waiver or reduction is requested.  This language is necessary to:  1) Inform the district of 
possible loss of revenue that may have been forecasted in their budgetary projections; 2) Inform 
the district that they may need to adjust their funding sources to cover the cost of the exemption; 
and 3)  Continue an open relationship with the district.  
 
There is currently legislation before the state house and the senate to modify the impact fee 
language that requires exempted impact fees to be paid from public funds other than impact fee 
accounts (HB 1398 and SB 5524).  If this legislation passes, it will provide an additional tool for 
the city to encourage alternative housing choices.  
 
ALTERNATIVES:    

1) Recommend amendments to the proposed ordinance.  
2) Return the issue to the Planning Commission and/or city staff for further study and 

analysis. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   
No direct fiscal impacts are anticipated from the adoption of the amendments to transportation 
and school impact fee regulations.  Any future transportation impact fee requests will go before 
the City Council for their evaluation against current budgets at that time.  Exempting 
development from school impact fees does not have a direct impact the city’s capital or general 
fund budget.   
 
COUNCIL ACTION:         X   Ordinance             Resolution             Motion    _____Other           
 

Councilmember _______________ moves, Councilmember _______________ 
seconds, to pass an ordinance amending the impact fee exemption requirements 
and process to CMC Chapter 12.105 transportation impact fees and CMC Chapter 
18.120 school impact fees. 
 

REVIEWED BY: Community Development Director 
   Finance Director 

City Attorney 
City Manager 

 

55 of 70



 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
AMENDING THE IMPACT FEE EXEMPTION 
REQUIREMENTS AND PROCESS TO CMC CHAPTER 
12.105 TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEES AND CMC 
CHAPTER 18.120 SCHOOL IMPACT FEES. 

 
WHEREAS, the Washington State Legislature passed the Growth Management Act of 

1990 and 1991, Chapter 36.70A RCW and Chapter 82.02 RCW which authorizes the collection 
of impact fees; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 12.105.050 of the Covington Municipal code (CMC) authorizes the 

City of Covington to adopt and collect transportation impact fees; and    
 
WHEREAS, Section 18.120.020 of the CMC authorizes the city to collect school impact 

fees on behalf of the school district and to adopt the school impact fee schedule on an annual 
basis; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 12.105.140 and Section 18.120.080 of the CMC adopt impact fee 

exemptions for low and moderate income housing developments; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt regulations modifying the impact fee 

exemption process for low or moderate incoming housing developments; and 
 

WHEREAS, the requirements of the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA), as adopted 
in CMC 16.10 have been met; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Covington Planning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed 
impact fee exemption process within Covington zoning code regulations on November 17, 2011; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Covington Planning Commission unanimously recommended approval 
of the proposed changes to the impact fee exemption process. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 
COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.

 

  Covington Municipal Code Chapters 12.105 transportation impact fees and 
18.120  school impact fees are amended as provided in the attached Exhibit 1and fully 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

ATTACHMENT 1

56 of 70



 

Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after proper posting 
and publication.  A summary of this ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the 
ordinance in its entirety. 
 

Section 3.  If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it, is determined 
to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this ordinance and 
ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 Passed by the City Council in an open public meeting on the 24th day of January, 2012. 

 
 
_______________________                                             
Mayor Margaret Harto 

     
PUBLISHED:  ___________ 

 
EFFECTIVE:    ___________ 

 
                            
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Sara Springer 
City Attorney 

ATTESTED: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Sharon Scott 
City Clerk 

57 of 70



 

 
Q:\City Clerk's Office\Blue Sheets\Community Development Blue Sheets\2012 Blue Sheets\01-24-2012 Code Amendements to TIF and School 

Impact Fees\Attachment_1__Exhibit_A__TIF_and_School_Impact_Fees_Amends_Final.docx 
Page 1 of 4 

CHAPTER 12.105 
TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEES 

 
12.105.140 Exemptions from transportation impact fees. 

(1) The following development activities are exempt from paying transportation impact fees 
because they do not have a measurable impact on the City’s transportation facilities, or 
because the City has chosen to exempt them pursuant to RCW 82.02.060(2): 

(a) Public school districts shall be exempted from payment of transportation impact fees.  
(b) Existing Dwelling Unit. Any alteration, expansion, reconstruction, remodeling or 

replacement of existing single-family or multifamily dwelling units that does not result in the 
creation of additional dwelling units. 

(c) Existing Nonresidential Building. Any alteration, reconstruction, remodeling or 
replacement of an existing nonresidential building that does not result in the generation of any 
new daily vehicle trips.  

(d) Any accessory dwelling unit (ADU) permitted in accordance with applicable zoning 
regulations. 

(2) In addition to the exemptions in subsection (1) of this section, the following mayshall be 
exempt from the requirement to pay transportation impact fees:  

(a) Low- or moderate-income housing projects developed or owned by public housing 
agencies or private nonprofit housing developers. 

(b) Residential housing units dedicated for occupancy by low- or moderate-income 
households and whose rents or purchase prices are affordable to low- or moderate-income 
persons under the regulations of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development or its 
successor. 

(c) Individual low- or moderate-income dwelling units (as defined by King County’s housing 
programs) to be purchased by households with prices within their eligibility limits based on 
standard lending criteria. 

(3)  The developer shall be responsible for providing documentation to the City that their 
project qualifies for an exemption as outlined in subsection (2) of this section.  

(4) Any claim or request for an exemption under this section shall be made no later than the 
time of issuance of a building permit. If a building permit is not required for the development 
activity, the claim shall be made when the fee is tendered. Any claim not made when required 
by this section shall be deemed waived. 

(54)  The amount of the transportation impact fees not collected from low- or moderate-
income household development shall be paid from public funds other than impact fee 
accounts.The determination to grant or deny an exemption under subsection (2) of this section 
shall be in the sole discretion of the City Council after consideration in an open public meeting 
of the public benefit of the specific project, the hardship to the project of the impact fee, the 
impacts of the project, the availability of public funding to pay the transportation impact fees 
payable on the project, and any other factors deemed relevant by the City Council. The City 
Council may also vote to exempt specific projects, or components thereof, within proposed 
development activities with broad public purposes from all or part of the required 
transportation impact fees upon such conditions as the City Council deems appropriate. If an 

EXHIBIT A

58 of 70



 

 
Q:\City Clerk's Office\Blue Sheets\Community Development Blue Sheets\2012 Blue Sheets\01-24-2012 Code Amendements to TIF and School 

Impact Fees\Attachment_1__Exhibit_A__TIF_and_School_Impact_Fees_Amends_Final.docx 
Page 2 of 4 

exemption is granted, the exempted transportation impact fee attributable to the development 
shall be paid from public funds other than impact fees or interest on impact fees. 

(5) The Department is hereby authorized to adopt administrative rules to implement this 
section. Such rules shall provide for the administration of this program and shall: 

(a) Encourage the construction of housing for low- or moderate-income households by public 
housing agencies or private nonprofit housing developers participating in publicly sponsored or 
subsidized housing programs; 

(b) Encourage the construction in private developments of housing units for low- or 
moderate-income households that are in addition to units required by another housing 
program or development condition; 

(c) Ensure that housing that qualifies as low- or moderate-cost meets appropriate standards 
regarding household income, rent levels or sale prices, location, number of units, and 
development size; and 

(d) Ensure that developers who obtain an exemption from or reduction of transportation 
impact fees pursuant to subsection (2) of this section will in fact build the proposed low- and 
moderate-cost housing and make it available to low-income households for a minimum of 15 
years. 

(6) As a condition of receiving an exemption under subsection (2) of this section, the owner 
shall execute and record in King County’s real property title records a City-drafted lien, 
covenant, or other contractual provision against the property that provides that the proposed 
housing unit or development will continue to be used for low- or moderate-income housing and 
remain affordable to those households under the regulations of the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development. The term of this provision shall be ten (10) years for 
individual owners and fifteen (15) years for private and private nonprofit developers/builders. 
The lien, covenant, or other contractual provision shall run with the land and apply to 
subsequent owners and assigns. In the event that the housing unit(s) is no longer used for low- 
or moderate-income housing during the term of the provision the owner shall promptly pay to 
the City the transportation impact fee owed according to the current fee resolution. 
 
 

CHAPTER 18.120 
SCHOOL IMPACT FEES 

 
18.120.080 Exemption or reduction for low or moderate income housing. 
(1) Low- or moderate-income housing projects being developed by public housing agencies or 
private nonprofit housing developers shall may be exempt from the payment of school impact 
fees. The amount of the school impact fees not collected from low- or moderate-income 
household development shall be paid from the school district’s public funds other than impact 
fee accounts. The impact fees for these units shall be considered paid for by the school district 
through its other funding sources, without the district actually transferring funds from its other 
funding sources into the impact fee account. The Department shall review all school impact fee 
exemption applications for low- or moderate-income housing developments pursuant to 
criteria and procedures adopted by administrative rule and shall advise the Community 

59 of 70



 

 
Q:\City Clerk's Office\Blue Sheets\Community Development Blue Sheets\2012 Blue Sheets\01-24-2012 Code Amendements to TIF and School 

Impact Fees\Attachment_1__Exhibit_A__TIF_and_School_Impact_Fees_Amends_Final.docx 
Page 3 of 4 

Development Director as to whether the project qualifies for the exemption. The Community 
Development Director shall notify the school district of all applications for exemptions and 
reductions and whether the project qualifies for the exemption. The Community Development 
Department shall review proposed developments of low or moderate income housing by such 
public or nonprofit developers pursuant to criteria and procedures adopted by administrative 
rule, and shall determine whether the project qualifies for the exemption. 
(2) Private developers who dedicate residential units for occupancy by low- or moderate- 
income households may apply to the Department for reductions in school impact fees pursuant 
to the criteria established for public housing agencies and private nonprofit housing developers 
pursuant to subsection (1) of this section. , and subject to the provisions of subsection (1) of 
this section. The Department shall review proposed developments of low or moderate income 
housing by such private developers pursuant to criteria and procedures adopted by 
administrative rule, and shall advise the Community Development Department as to whether 
the project qualifies for the exemption. If the Department recommends the exemption to the 
school district, the calculated school impact fee for the development shall be reduced by an 
amount that is proportionate to the number of units in the development that satisfy the 
adopted criteria. 
(3) Individual low- or moderate-income home purchasers (as defined pursuant to the City of 
Covington Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS)) who are purchasing homes at 
prices within their eligibility limits based on standard lending criteria and meet other means 
tests established by rule by the Department are exempted from payment of the school impact 
fee; provided, that at such time as the property in question is transferred to another owner 
who does not qualify for the exemption, at which time the full school impact fee according to 
the current fee resolution shall be due and payable upon the property transfer. 
(4) Any claim or request for an exemption under this section shall be made no later than the 
time of application for a building permit. If a building permit is not required for the 
development activity, the claim shall be made when the fee is tendered. Any claim not made 
when required by this section shall be deemed waived. 
(54) The Department is hereby instructed and authorized to adopt administrative rules to 
implement this section. Such rules shall provide for the administration of this program and 
shall: 

(a) Encourage the construction of housing for low- or moderate-income households by 
public housing agencies or private nonprofit housing developers participating in 
publicly sponsored or subsidized housing programs; 
(b) Encourage the construction in private developments of housing units for low- or 
moderate-income households that are in addition to units required by another housing 
program or development condition;  
(c) Ensure that housing that qualifies as low- or moderate-cost meets appropriate 
standards regarding household income, rent levels or sale prices, location, number of 
units and development size;  
(d) Ensure that developers who obtain an exemption from or reduction of school 
impact fees will in fact build the proposed low- or moderate-cost housing and make it 

60 of 70



 

 
Q:\City Clerk's Office\Blue Sheets\Community Development Blue Sheets\2012 Blue Sheets\01-24-2012 Code Amendements to TIF and School 

Impact Fees\Attachment_1__Exhibit_A__TIF_and_School_Impact_Fees_Amends_Final.docx 
Page 4 of 4 

available to low- or moderate-income households for a minimum of fifteen (15) years; 
and 
(e) Ensure that individual low- or moderate-income purchasers meet appropriate 
eligibility standards based on income and other financial means tests. 

(65) As a condition of receiving an exemption under subsection (2) or (3) of this section, the 
owner must execute and record a City-drafted lien, covenant, and/or other contractual 
provision against the property for a period of ten (10) years for individual owners, and fifteen 
(15) years for private developers, guaranteeing that the proposed development will continue to 
be used for low- or moderate-income housing. In the event that the housing unit(s) is no longer 
used for pattern of development or the use of the development is no longer for low- or 
moderate-income housing during the term of the provision herein, then the owner shall 
promptly pay to the school district the school impact fee owed according to the current fee 
resolution. pay the impact fee amount from which the owner or any prior owner was exempt. 
The lien, covenant, or other contractual provision shall run with the land and apply to 
subsequent owners and assigns.  
 

 

61 of 70



Agenda Item 3 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date: January 24, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTERS 18.20 TECHNICAL TERMS AND LAND 

USE DEFINITIONS; 18.31 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AND DESIGN 
STANDARDS; 18.40 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS-LANDSCAPING AND 
18.55 SIGNS OF THE COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE ASSOCIATED WITH 
MINOR CORRECTIONS TO THE DOWNTOWN ZONING PROVISIONS. 

  
RECOMMENDED BY:   Richard Hart, Community Development Director 

Salina Lyons, Senior Planner  
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed Ordinance Adopting amendments associated with corrections to the 
downtown zoning code.  
 

PREPARED BY:  Salina Lyons, Senior Planner 
 
EXPLANATION:   
For the past year, staff has been tracking minor code amendments that have been inadvertently 
left out of the Covington Municipal Code (CMC) and/or require clarification. The following 
code amendments are related to the downtown zoning code and permitted land uses.  The 
purpose for amending these code sections is to correct conflicts, provide clarity, and make the 
code easier to understand, particularly regarding process. 
 

A. Farmers’ and Public Markets 
At the time of the adoption of the original farmers’ and public markets ordinance, this land use 
was intended to be permitted within the downtown zones.  However, upon adoption of the new 
downtown zoning, this land use was unintentionally limited to the GC zone (CMC 18.31.080). 
The Planning Commission recommends listing farmers’ and public markets as a separate use in 
the land use table and permitting them outright in the General Commercial (GC), Mixed 
Commercial (MC), and Town Center (TC) zones and prohibiting the use in the Mixed Housing 
and Office (MHO) zone. The MHO zone tends to be more residential and contain smaller lots 
that would not accommodate a farmers’ and public markets’ need for space and parking.  
 

B. Landscaping 
Under the previous downtown design standards there was a requirement that parking islands be 
provided at intervals of ten (10) parking stalls. This design feature brakes up large parking lots 
and disperses landscaping throughout the project.  However, this requirement was left out of the 
current downtown design guidelines and standards.  The Planning Commission recommends 
amending the landscaping section CMC 18.40.080 to include this requirement and cross 
referencing it in CMC 18.31.130 – [Downtown] Landscaping Requirements.  
 

C. Signage 
The downtown zoning chapter has a section on signs, specifically signs located within the Town 
Center (TC) zone (CMC 18.31.140).  The sign regulations in this downtown zoning section vary 

62 of 70



substantially from the regulations in the stand alone chapter on signs, CMC 18.55-Signs.  Most 
developers and sign manufacturers reference the stand alone sign chapter when putting plans 
together for their clients.  To reduce confusion and direct the users of the code to the applicable 
sections, the Planning Commission recommends providing cross references from the 
freestanding and building mounted sign section in CMC 18.55.070 to the sign code section in 
CMC 18.31. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:    

1) Recommend amendments to the proposed ordinance.  
2) Return the issue to the Planning Commission and/or city staff for further study and 

analysis. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   
No direct fiscal impacts are anticipated from the adoption of these downtown zoning 
amendments.   
 
COUNCIL ACTION:         X   Ordinance             Resolution             Motion    _____Other           
 

Councilmember _______________ moves, Councilmember _______________ 
seconds, to pass an ordinance amending CMC Sections 18.20 Technical Terms 
and Land Use Definitions; 18.31 Downtown Development and Design 
Standards; 18.40 Development Standards-Landscaping and 18.55 Signs of 
the Covington Municipal Code associated with minor corrections to the 
downtown zoning provisions. 
 

REVIEWED BY: Community Development Director 
   Finance Director 

City Attorney 
City Manager 

 

63 of 70



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
AMENDING CHAPTERS 18.20 TECHNICAL TERMS AND 
LAND USE DEFINITIONS; 18.31 DOWNTOWN 
DEVELOPMENT AND DESIGN STANDARDS; 18.40 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS-LANDSCAPING AND 18.55 
SIGNS OF THE COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE 
ASSOCIATED WITH MINOR CORRECTIONS TO THE 
DOWNTOWN ZONING PROVISIONS. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Covington Municipal Code (“CMC”) Chapter 

18.31 on October 1, 2010 (Ordinance 10-10); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes minor error and omissions associated with the 

adoption of Ordinance 10-10 and the desire to correct the downtown zoning provisions 
accordingly; and  
 

WHEREAS, the requirements of the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA), as adopted 
in CMC 16.10 have been met; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Covington Planning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed 
minor corrections to the Covington zoning code regulations on November 17, 2011; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Covington Planning Commission unanimously recommended approval 
of the proposed corrections to the downtown zoning provisions. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 
COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.

 

  Covington Municipal Code Chapters 18.20 Technical Terms and Land Use 
Definitions; 18.25 Permitted Uses; and 18.31 Downtown Development and Design Standards, 
are amended as provided in the attached Exhibit A and fully incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after proper posting 
and publication.  A summary of this ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the 
ordinance in its entirety. 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

64 of 70



 

Section 3.  If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it, is determined 
to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this ordinance and 
ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 Passed by the City Council in an open public meeting on the 24th day of January, 2011. 

 
 
_______________________                                             
Mayor Margaret Harto 

     
PUBLISHED:   

 
EFFECTIVE:     

 
                            
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Sara Springer 
City Attorney 

ATTESTED: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Sharon Scott 
City Clerk 

65 of 70



 

Q:\City Clerk's Office\Blue Sheets\Community Development Blue Sheets\2012 Blue Sheets\01-24-2012  Downtown Misc 
Code Amendments\Attachment_1_Exhibit_1_Downtown_Misc_Code_Updates_Final.docx 

Page 1 of 2 
 

CHAPTER 18.20 

TECHNICAL TERMS AND LAND USE DEFINITIONS 
 

18.20.827 Outdoor commercial. 

“Outdoor commercial” means a commercial use where the majority of activity occurs outside a 
permanent structure. Outdoor commercial does not include “farmers’ markets” defined in CMC 
18.20.451.5 or “public market” as defined in CMC 18.20.940.5.(Ord. 10-10 § 3 (Exh. C)) 

 

CHAPTER 18.31 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AND DESIGN STANDARDS 
 

 

18.31.080  Permitted Land Uses  
 (3) Permitted Use Table 

 Town 
Center (TC) 

Mixed 
Commercial 
(MC) 

General 
Commercial 
(GC) 

Mixed 
Housing 
Office 
(MHO) 1 

Use Categories     
Commercial 
Drive Through Use NP P P NP 
Farmers’ and Public Markets 6 P P P NP 
Gambling and Card Rooms NP NP NP NP 

(4). Permitted Use Conditions.  

6. Farmers’ and public markets are permitted. Temporary farmers’ and public markets 
shall be permitted in accordance with Chapter 18.85.125 CMC.  

 
18.31.130  Landscaping Requirements  

 (4) Additional landscaping requirements referenced in this Title.  
(a) Chapter 18.40.100, 18.40.110, 18.40.130, 18.40.140, and 18.40.150 CMC for 

additional applicable standards. 
(b) Chapter 18.40.080, Subsections (3) (4) (5) and (6) CMC for parking area landscaping 

requirements. 
  

EXHIBIT A

66 of 70



 

Q:\City Clerk's Office\Blue Sheets\Community Development Blue Sheets\2012 Blue Sheets\01-24-2012  Downtown Misc 
Code Amendments\Attachment_1_Exhibit_1_Downtown_Misc_Code_Updates_Final.docx 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
CHAPTER 18.40 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS- LANDSCAPING 
 
18.40.080 Landscaping – Surface parking areas. 
(3) Trees Parking islands shall be provided and distributed throughout the parking area at a rate 
ofas follows: 

(a) One tree every 10 parking stalls; and Parking islands shall be provided at intervals 
not greater than ten (10) parking spaces;.   

(b) Parking islands shall be provided Trees placed at the end of every parking row; 
 

CHAPTER 18.55 

SIGNS 
 
 
18.55.070 Signs in nonresidential zoning districts. 
(1) Freestanding Signs. All permit applications for freestanding signs will be designated as either 
a high profile, medium profile or low profile sign, based upon criteria regarding both the size 
and zoning designation of the development. The sign profile designation shall control the sign 
types, height, sign area and number of signs allowed, unless otherwise specified in CMC 
18.31.140 for developments located within the Town Center zoning district. 
 
 
(2) Building-Mounted Signs. All permit applications for building mounted signs within the Town 
Center zoning district shall comply with CMC 18.31.140 for sign height, sign area and number of 
signs.  
 
 

67 of 70



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  January 24, 2012 
 

 
DISCUSSION OF  

FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 
 
 
 
 

6:00 p.m., Tuesday, February 14, 2012 Study Session 
 
 
 

7:00 p.m., Tuesday, February 14, 2012 Regular Meeting 
 
 
 

(Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

68 of 70



 

Covington: Unmatched quality of life 

 

 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION  
Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Tuesday, February 14, 2012 - 6:00 p.m. 

 
 **Please note meeting start time ** 

 
      

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
The study session is an informal meeting involving discussion between and among the City Council, 
Commission (if applicable) and city staff regarding policy issues.  Study sessions may involve 
presentations, feedback, brainstorming, etc., regarding further work to be done by the staff on key 
policy matters. 
 

CALL CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION TO ORDER  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
ITEM(S) FOR DISCUSSION 
1. Solid Waste Franchise (Akramoff) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers shall 
address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving comment from the 
public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  If additional time is 
needed a person may request that the Council place an item on a future agenda as time allows. 
 
ADJOURN      
                             
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial (253) 638-
1110.  
 
*Note* A Regular Council meeting will immediately follow at approximately 7:00 pm 
 

Draft 
as of 1/18/12 

 

69 of 70



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
AGENDA 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
 
Tuesday, February 14, 2012                                                                       City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL MEETING TO ORDER  
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving 
comment from the public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  If additional time is needed a person may request that the Council place an item on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Surplus Vehicles (Junkin) 
C-4. Resolution Setting the Hearing Date for the 176th Place SE Right-of-Way Vacation 

(Lyons/Hart) 
C-5. Franchise Fee and Utility Tax Review (Hendrickson) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Social Media Plan (Slate) 
2. Award Design Contract for CIP 1127 (Vondran) 
3. Multifamily Property Tax Exemption (Hart) 
4. Appoint Budget Priorities Advisory Committee (BPAC) (Matheson) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
   
ADJOURN    
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum 
of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask 
the operator to dial (253) 638-1110.  

Draft 
as of 1/18/12 

 

70 of 70

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	01-24-12 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, January 24, 2012                                                                        City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	C-1 Green Sheet 01-24-2012 Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	C-1 Attachment 01.09.2012 Special Joint Meeting with School Board
	C-2 Green Sheet Vouchers Approval 01-24-2012
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	C-2 Attachment
	C-3 Green Sheet 01.24.12 South End ARCH  Blue Sheet
	C-3 New attachment 01-24-2012 SEARCH ILA 8-5-11
	C-4 Green Sheet 012412ReporterContractBlueSheet
	C-4 Attachment 1 City of Covington 2012-2013 contract
	C-5 Green Sheet Ashton Easement BLUE SHEET
	Consent Agenda Item C-5
	Covington City Council Meeting

	C-5 Attachment 1 New Attachment 1 Ashton Easement
	C-6 Green Sheet Covington Commercial Easement_ BLUE SHEET
	Consent Agenda Item C-6
	Covington City Council Meeting

	C-6 Attachment 1 Covington Commercial Water Line Easement
	RETURN ADDRESS

	Item 1 01-24-12 Appointments to Parks & Recreation Commission
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 2 BLUE_SHEET_Code_Amendments_to_TIF_and_School_Impact_Fees_Final
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 2 Attachment_1_Ord__Adopting_TIF_and_School_Impact_Fees_Amends_Final
	Item 2 Attachment_1__Exhibit_A__TIF_and_School_Impact_Fees_Amends_Final
	12.105.140 Exemptions from transportation impact fees.
	18.120.080 Exemption or reduction for low or moderate income housing.

	Item 3 BLUE_SHEET_Downtwon_Misc_Code_Amendments_Final
	Agenda Item 3

	Item 3 Attachment_1_Ord_adopting_Downtown_Misc_Code_Amendments_Final
	Item 3 Attachment_1_Exhibit_1_Downtown_Misc_Code_Updates_Final
	18.31.080  Permitted Land Uses
	(3) Permitted Use Table
	(4). Permitted Use Conditions.
	18.31.130  Landscaping Requirements
	(4) Additional landscaping requirements referenced in this Title.
	(a) Chapter 18.40.100, 18.40.110, 18.40.130, 18.40.140, and 18.40.150 CMC for additional applicable standards.
	(b) Chapter 18.40.080, Subsections (3) (4) (5) and (6) CMC for parking area landscaping requirements.

	18.40.080 Landscaping – Surface parking areas.


	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	02-14-12 Study Session
	Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington
	Tuesday, February 14, 2012 - 6:00 p.m.
	CALL CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION TO ORDER
	ROLL CALL
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA


	02-14-12 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, February 14, 2012                                                                       City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE




